By asking yourself the following questions about verbs, you may see clearly the distinction between the imperfect and the preterite. 

IMPERFECT 
1.  Does the action merely supply a background for the plot by describing a state? 
2.  Is it a continuing action which is interrupted by another action?  In that case,    put the continuing action in the imperfect. 
3.  Is it a past action expressed by was/were + ing form of the verb? 
4.  Is it a customary action, repeated regularly, which would be expressed in English by would/used to + verb? 

PRETERITE 
1.  Is the action limited in time in any way?  Even if the action takes place over twenty years, if the time is limited use Preterite. 
2.  Does the action state a past fact which does not set a background? 
3.  Does the action indicate a change in mental state? 


